
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  
 

AGENDA 
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 

Tuesday, July 23, 2024 at 12:30 p.m.  
Donner Room: 1355 Capital Blvd. Reno, NV 89520 

 and Teleconference 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ATTEND TELPHONICALLY BY CALLING THE NUMBER LISTED BELOW.  
(be sure to keep your phones on mute, and do not place the call on hold) 

Phone: (775) 325-5404 
Meeting ID: 294 945 183 955# 

 
1. Roll call* 

2. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

3. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

4. Approval of the April 16, 2024 minutes (For Possible Action) 

5. Discussion and possible direction on changing Benefit Calculation templates- Jessica Atkinson 
(For Possible Action) 

6. Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust calculation for TMWA Retiree 
Tim Gomo- Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

7. Review and approval of Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust calculation for TMWA Retiree 
Jonathon Rouse- Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

8. Discussion and possible Trustee direction regarding eligibility of future beneficiary of the Pre98 
benefit, SPPC credit points - Jessica Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

9. Discussion and possible Trustee direction regarding retiree premium reimbursement policy—
Matt Bowman (For Possible Action) 

10. Review and consider for approval request(s) for premium reimbursements. —Jessica Atkinson 
(For Possible Action) 

11. Update regarding status of trust document revision —Jessica Atkinson* 

12. Review of the Actuarial Analysis – Veronica Galindo* 

13. Review of the Financial Statement Audit- Veronica Galindo* 

14. Review of Retirement Benefits Investment Fund (RBIF) performance review—Matt Bowman* 

15. Trustee comments and requests for future agenda items* 

16. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

17. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

 
 



§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  
 
NOTES: 

1.The announcement of this meeting has been posted at the following locations: Truckee Meadows Water Authority (1355 Capital Blvd., Reno), 
Sparks City Hall (431 Prater Way, Sparks), at http://www.tmwa.com, and State of Nevada Public Notice Website, https://notice.nv.gov/. 

2. In accordance with NRS 241.020, this agenda closes three working days prior to the meeting. We are pleased to make reasonable 
accommodations for persons who are disabled and wish to attend meetings. If you require special arrangements for the meeting, please call (775) 
834-8294 at least 24 hours before the meeting date.3. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove 
agenda items, or delay discussion on agenda items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 

4. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 

5. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods. The public may sign-up to speak during 
the public comment period or on a specific agenda item by completing a “Request to Speak” card and submitting it to the clerk. In addition to the 
public comment periods, the Chairman has the discretion to allow public comment on any agenda item, including any item on which action is to be 
taken. 

http://www.tmwa.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/


07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 1 of 5 
Draft April 16, 2024 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust
A single employer plan sponsored by 

  Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

Draft April 16, 2024 MINUTES 

The meeting of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (Trust) Trustees was held on Tuesday, April 
16, 2024 in person and through teleconference. 

Matt Bowman, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 01:00 P.M. 

1. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF PRESENCE OF A QUORUM.

A quorum was present. 

Voting Members Present: Voting Members Absent 
Matt Bowman 
Kelly McGlynn  
Pete Pribyl 
Steve Enos 

Members Present Members Absent: 
Rosalinda Rodriguez Jessica Atkinson 
Gus Rossi Mike Venturino 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the
Trustees present, the Trustees approved the agenda.

4. APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 16, 2024 MINUTES

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the
Trustees present, the Trustees approved the January 16, 2024 minutes.



 07/16/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 
 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 2 of 5 
Draft April 16, 2024  
 

5. TRUSTEE APPOINTMENT OF MICHELL “KELLY” MCGLYNN 

 Ms. Rodriguez advised that as Trustee Juan Esparza had announced his upcoming 
retirement, Mr. Mitchell “Kelly” McGlynn has been selected and formally appointed by 
the TMWA board on 02/21/2024 to serve as a trustee on the PRMT Trust Section 501-c-
9 for the term ending 12/31/2024.  

For informational purposes only, no action required. 

6. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATION FOR 
TMWA RETIREE KEVIN COMPHEL 

Ms. Rosalinda Rodriguez, HR Technician II, presented the benefits calculation for Kevin Comphel.  
Mr. Comphel will retire on August 2, 2024, and with Trustee approval have a benefit effective 
date of September 1, 2024.  Ms. Rosalinda Rodriguez confirmed she met with the retiree and 
confirmed the information on the benefit calculation form.  Mr. Comphel has elected to 
continue on TMWA coverages as a Retiree and Spouse for medical, dental and vision coverages. 
Mr. Comphel has elected for any remaining premium balance to be paid from his PERS check. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Kevin Comphel. 

7. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATION FOR 
TMWA RETIREE JUAN ESPARA. 

Ms. Rosalinda Rodriguez, HR Technician II, presented the benefits calculation for Juan Esparza.  
Mr. Esparza will retire on July 3, 2024, and with Trustee approval have a benefit effective date of 
August 1, 2024.  Ms. Rosalinda Rodriguez confirmed she met with the retiree and confirmed the 
information on the benefit calculation form.  Mr. Esparza has elected to continue on TMWA 
coverages as a Retiree Only for medical, dental and vision coverages. Mr. Esparza has elected for 
any remaining premium balance to be paid from his PERS check. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Juan Esparza. 

8. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF REQUEST(S) FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
PREMIUMS 

 Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for employee # 50072, for 
premiums for Medicare premiums paid directly by the retiree through Social Security, and 
Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield supplemental coverage, and RX coverage through Wellcare paid 
for directly by the retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent by the Trustee’s 
present, the reimbursement request for employee # 50072 for Medicare premiums paid 
directly by the retiree through Social Security was approved. 



 07/16/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 
 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 3 of 5 
Draft April 16, 2024  
 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request for employee # 50078 for supplemental 
coverage through United Healthcare and supplemental prescription coverage also through 
United Healthcare paid for directly by the retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent by the Trustee’s 
present, the reimbursement request for employee #50078 for supplemental coverage through 
United Healthcare and supplemental prescription coverage also through United Healthcare 
paid for directly by the retiree was approved. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request received for employee # 50055 for Medicare 
premiums paid for through Social Security and supplemental coverage paid directly by the 
retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent by the Trustee’s 
present, the reimbursement request for employee # 50055 for Medicare premiums paid 
through Social Security and supplemental coverage paid directly by the retiree was approved. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request for employee # 50049 for Medicare 
deducted through Social Security, and supplemental coverage paid for directly by the retiree. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent by the Trustee’s 
present, the reimbursement request for employee # 50049 for Medicare deducted through 
Social Security and supplemental coverage paid for directly by the retiree was approved. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented a reimbursement request for employee # 50131 for Medicare 
premiums and supplemental coverage paid directly by the retiree.  

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent by the Trustee’s 
present, the reimbursement request for employee # 50131 for Medicare premiums and 
supplemental coverages paid directly by the retiree was approved. 

9.  UPDATE REGARDING STATUS OF TRUST DOCUMENT REVISION 

During the October 18, 2022, meeting Ms. Stefanie Morris, Director of Legal & Regulatory Affairs 
discussed interpretation of the VEBA language as it relates to Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) 
287.023 and whether an individual needs to be receiving a NV PERS benefit to elect a health 
plan offed by TMWA. Additionally, Ms. Morris discussed interpretation NRS 287.023 and 
287.0205and whether a retiree can continue group life without being enrolled in group health.  
Trustees requested that staff review the Trust document to ensure it complies with the NRS and 
bring back  recommended revisions for Trustee consideration. 

 During the January 17, 2023 meeting, a draft of proposed changes was presented and approved 
by Trustees pending discussion with the City of Reno Plan administrators on interpretation of 
NRS 287.023 and 287.0205  relating to retiree life insurance eligibility. 

 During the July 25, 2023, October 17,  2023, January 16, 2024 and April 16, 2024 meetings, Ms. 
Rodriguez informed Trustees that TMWA staff is still waiting to meet with the City of Reno 



 07/16/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 
 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 4 of 5 
Draft April 16, 2024  
 

regarding awhether an individual needs to be enrolled in TMWA health plans to continue group 
life coverage. 

   For informational purposes only, no action required. 

10.  DISSCUSSION AND POSSIBLE TRUSTEE DIRECTION REGARDING RETIREE PREMIUM 
REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

Mr. Bowman informed Trustees of a letter submitted by retiree Mary Bennett in April of 
2024requesting Trustees consider changing to the retiree premium reimbursement 
policy to process reimbursements as soon as they are received. 

Discussion ensued on changes that could be made to the process. However, it was 
determined if the discussed changes were implemented, the timelines for 
reimbursement would only be impacted by  a couple of weeks due to the requirement 
that Trustee review the requests during their quarterly meetings.  

Discussion then ensued regarding whether to continue reimbursement request 
approvals as part of the quarterly trustee meetings or if  the Chief Financial Officer could 
be delegated this responsibility. Mr. Bowman advised he would draft a revision to the 
reimbursement policy considering Trustee feedback and would  present to Trustee’s in a 
future meeting. 

11. REVIEW OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS INVESTMENT FUND (RBIF) PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

Mr. Bowman reviewed the RBIF dated December 31, 2023.  Overall the performance did 
well, the Fiscal Year to Date return was 6%. 

 For informational purposes only, no action required. 

12. TRUSTEE COMMENTS AND REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS* 

 Reimbursement Requests 

 Discussion of reimbursement policy 

 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT 

14. ADJOURNMENT  

With no further business to discuss, Chairman Bowman adjourned the meeting at 1:30 PM. 

Minutes were approved by the Trustees in session on ___ __________. 



 07/16/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 
 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 5 of 5 
Draft April 16, 2024  
 

Respectfully Submitted,  

________________________________________________ 
Rosalinda Rodriguez, Recording Secretary 



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 05 

Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Trustees of the Post Retirement Plan & Trust §501-c-9 
From: Jessica Atkinson, HR Director 
DATE: July 16, 2024 
SUBJECT: Proposal to update Benefit Calculation Templates 

Recommendation:  
Approve the revised Benefit Calculation Templates for: 
1. Management, Professional and Administrative (MPAT) employees hired before December

14, 2018,
2. IBEW transfer employees hired by Sierra before January 1, 1998, and
3. IBEW employees hired between January 1, 1998, and December 13, 2018.
Summary
To verify eligibility and calculate benefit amounts for the §501-c-9 Post Retirement Benefit Plan 
& Trust, staff utilizes Benefit Calculation templates to enter information necessary to determine 
the trust benefit as well as identify retiree group health, dental, vision, and life insurance plan 
elections and any remaining retiree premium obligations.  
The current templates combine the trust benefit, retiree elections and obligations into one page 
and do not have parameters set up to flag if someone does not meet eligibility criteria, which 
may result in providing misinformation to employees.   
Staff has worked with the finance department to revise the benefit calculation templates for each 
benefit tier of the §501-c-9 trust.  These proposed templates are designed to minimize manual 
data input and have built in formulas to verify eligibility and calculate benefits and retiree 
premium obligations where possible.  Additionally, the proposed templates create a distinct page 
to depict trust eligibility and benefit amounts, which are approved by Trustees and a second page 
to show retiree elections and premium obligations, which may change over time and are not 
approved by Trustees.  
The proposed templates improve the current process and separate the sections approved by 
Trustees from those that maybe be modified by the retirees.  
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 Benefit Calculation Template for MPAT employees hired before December 14, 

2018 
Attachment 2 Benefit Calculation Template for IBEW transfer employees hired by Sierra before 

January 1, 1998 



07/16/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 05 
 

  Page 2 of 2 

Attachment 3 Benefit Calculation Template for IBEW employees hired between January 1, 
1998, and December 13, 2018 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT The following trust benefit calculation was prepared and reflects amounts as of: 7/3/2024

General Information: Penalty Information:

Retiree Test

05/29/68
10/02/01

08/03/24
Age <62 
Reduction Yes 5.7399 5.00% 28.70%

09/01/24 Yes - or - No
56.2601
22.8364

Trust Benefit Information:
Annual Medical Benefit Credit: a b a x b = c d c - (c*d)

Age 55 through 64 VEBA Permits to 30 YOS
Credit 
Rate

Years of 
Service

Unadjusted 
Credit

Total 
Penalty

Final 
Credit

Credit calculation: 235.00$     22.8364  5,366.56$    28.70% 3,826.38$       

Age 65 and above VEBA Permits to 35 YOS
Credit calculation: 105.00$     22.8364  2,397.82$    28.70% 1,709.66$       

3,826.38$       

Life Insurance:
Retiree Coverage: Trust Subsidized in accordance with MPAT benefit resolution. No cost for retiree

Spouse Coverage: $0.48/month
Coverage Elected: Yes

Retiree Acknowledgement:

Retiree Signature Date

Company Approval:

TMWA HR Administrator Date

Trustee Approval:

Chairperson - Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Date

Vice-Chairperson - Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Date

(Initial) I choose to waive my TMWA Post Medical Plan benefit(s). I understand this waiver is permanent.

(Initial) I have reviewed the above calculation and accept the TMWA §501-c-9 Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
benefit(s). I understand I will have to request reimbursement credit or pay my portion of any outstanding premium in 
accordance with Trust polices and guidelines.

Date of Birth:
Date of Hire:

Date of Retirement:

Date of Benefit Request:

Annual trust credit for calculating benefits at time of retirement:

Applicable Plan 
Section: 4.1.2 Specific Post Retirement Benefits for Health Plan Coverage for MPAT Employees

Employees are responsible for reviewing the calculations above for accuracy in accordance with the PRMT plan document. 
Minimum eligibility includes a date of hired on or before 12/13/18 and exiting TMWA with at least 10 years of service and after 
reaching age 55. This benefit is only considered approved once signed off on by the Post Retirement Medical Trust Board of 
Trustees below.

Penalty 
Applied

# of Penalty 
Years

Annual 
Penalty 

Did the employee have any periods of less 
than full time work?

Total Penalty

No

Retiree Name:

Age at Benefit Request:
Years of Service:

Page 1 of 2

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 
05 Attachment 1



DRAFT The following premium calculation was prepared and reflects estimates as of: 7/3/2024

Retiree Information:
Retiree Name:
Date of Retirement:
Enrollment on TMWA Medical Coverage:
Enrollment on TMWA Dental Coverage:
Enrollment on TMWA Vision Coverage:
Spouse Life Coverage:
TMWA Insurance Premium Costs:

Retiree Monthly
Coverage 2024 Medical Dental Vision

No coverage -$  -$           -$  
Retiree Only 747.54$          78.56$       5.46$  
Retiree & Spouse 1,307.61$       132.10$     8.74$  
Retiree & Child(ren) 1,240.53$       124.79$     8.93$  
Retiree & Family 1,630.27$       171.40$     14.42$  

Elected Premium Amounts  $      1,630.27  $            -    $ 8.74 

Retiree Premium and Credit Amounts: 
Annual 

Amounts
Monthly 
Amounts

Spouse Life 
Premium: 0.48$  

Premium Amount: 19,668.12$     1,639.01$  

Subtract Trust Credit: 3,826.38$       318.87$     

Amount Due: 15,841.74$     $1,320.14

Total monthly due will come from:
Retiree Total 
Monthly Due: $1,320.62

Retiree Acknowledgement:

Retiree Signature Date

Retiree Test

Important Information:  Retirees who continue on TMWA coverage must provide proof of Medicare Enrollment at the 
time the retiree and or the retiree's spouse turn 65 and for each subsequent year they are covered. MPAT benefit 
resolutions are subject to change as directed by the TMWA Board of Directors. All health and life premium calculations 
and Trust benefit awards are subject to change.

All premium costs and trust benefit credits shown above are subject to change. 

NV PERS 

08/03/24
Retiree & Family

No Coverage
Retiree & Spouse

Yes

Page 2 of 2

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 
05 Attachment 1



DRAFT The following trust benefit calculation was prepared and reflects amounts as of: 07/03/24

General Information: SPPCO Point Letter

Testing Retiree

11/19/68
12/20/90
08/30/25 3 59.7830
09/01/25
56.7830
34.7178

Trust Benefit Information:

80% of annual premium.
13,315.68$  

Life Insurance:
Retiree Coverage: Trust Subsidized in accordance with benefit resolution. No cost for retiree

Spouse Coverage: $0.48/month
Coverage Elected: Yes

Retiree Acknowledgement:

Retiree Signature Date

Company Approval:

TMWA HR Administrator Date

Trustee Approval:

Chairperson - Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Date

Vice-Chairperson - Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Date

(Initial) I choose to waive my TMWA Post Medical Plan benefit(s). I understand this waiver is permanent.

(Initial) I have reviewed the above calculation and accept the TMWA §501-c-9 Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
benefit(s). I understand I will have to request reimbursement credit or pay my portion of any outstanding premium in 
accordance with Trust polices and guidelines.

Date of Birth:
Date of Hire:
Date of Retirement:
Date of Benefit Request:

Eligible for

Applicable Plan Section: 4.1.4 Specific Post Retirement Benefits for Health Plan Coverage for Bargaining Unit (IBEW Local 
#1245) PRE98 Employees

Employees are responsible for reviewing the calculations above for accuracy in accordance with the PRMT plan 
document. Minimum eligibility includes a date of hire on or before 12/13/18 and exiting TMWA with at least 10 years of 
service and after reaching age 55. This benefit is only considered approved once signed off on by the Post Retirement 
Medical Trust Board of Trustees below.

Points 
applied

Artificial Age 
Achieved

Did the employee have any periods of less than 
full time work? No

Annual trust credit for calculating benefits:

Retiree Name:

Age at Benefit Request:
Years of Service:

Annual Benefit Credit:

Page 1 of 2

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 
05 Attachment 2



DRAFT The following premium calculation was prepared and reflects estimates as of: 7/3/2024

Retiree Information:
Retiree Name:
Date of Retirement:

Enrollment on TMWA Medical coverage:

Enrollment on TMWA Dental Coverage:
Enrollment on TMWA Vision Coverage:
Spouse Life coverage

TMWA Insurance Premium Costs:

Retiree Monthly
Coverage 2024 Medical Dental Vision

No coverage -$  -$              -$  
Retiree Only 747.54$              78.56$           5.46$  
Retiree & Spouse 1,307.61$           132.10$         8.74$  
Retiree & Child(ren) 1,240.53$           124.76$         8.93$  
Retiree & Family 1,630.27$           171.40$         14.42$  

Elected Premium Amounts 1,240.53$           132.10$         14.42$  

Retiree Premium and Credit Amounts: 
Annual 

Amounts
Monthly 
Amounts

Spouse Life 
Premium: 0.48$  

Premium Amount 16,644.60$         1,387.05$      

Subtract Trust Credit: 13,315.68$         1,109.64$      

Amount Due: 3,328.92$           $277.41

Total monthly due will come from: Retiree Total 
Monthly Due: $277.89

Retiree Acknowledgement:

Retiree Signature Date

Important Information:  Retirees who continue on TMWA coverage must provide proof of Medicare Enrollment at the 
time the retiree and or the retiree's spouse turn 65 and for each subsequent year they are covered. Benefit resolutions 
are subject to change as directed by the TMWA Board of Directors. All health and life premium calculations and Trust 

benefit awards are subject to change.
All premium costs and trust benefit credits shown above are subject to change. 

NV PERS 

Testing Retiree
08/30/25

Retiree & Child(ren)

Retiree & Spouse
Retiree & Family

Yes

Page 2 of 2

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 
05 Attachment 2



Name:

Hire Date 12/20/1990

Retirement Date: 8/30/2025

Retiree's Birthday 11/19/1968

Age at Retirement 56.7775
Years of Service at Retirement 34.6940

SPPC Grandfathering Criteria
Age as of 7/1/1998 29.6329
Years of Service as of 7/1/1998 7.53
If as of 07/01/1998, age 60 w/ at least 10 years of service
Criteria Met? No

Bridge (Option A) Criteria
Age as of: 6/11/2001 32.58
Years of Service as of: 6/11/2001 10.48

43.06
Criteria Met (80 point attained)? No

Bridge (Option B) Criteria
Age at close of sale 6/11/2001 32.56
Years of service at close of sale 6/11/2001 10.48
Points If Eligible 3

Points
Points

0
3
4
520+

Testing Retiree

Years of Service
0-9

10-14
15-19

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 
05 Attachment 2



DRAFT The following trust benefit calculation was prepared and reflects amounts as of: 7/3/2024

4.1.3 Specific Post Retirement Benefits for Health Plan Coverage for Post98 Employees

General Information:

Testing Retiree

10/04/61
05/31/00
06/14/24
07/01/24
62.7406
24.0548

Trust Benefit Information:
Lifetime Benefit Credit

Credit Amount Adjusted Years of 
Service

Lifetime Credit 
Amount

$1,250.00 x 24.0548 = $30,068.49

Life Insurance:
Retiree Coverage: Trust Subsidized in accordance with benefit resolution. No cost for retiree

Spouse Coverage: $0.48/month
Coverage Elected: Yes

Retiree Acknowledgement:

Retiree Signature Date

Company Approval:

TMWA HR Administrator Date

Trustee Approval:

Chairperson - Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Date

Vice-Chairperson - Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Date

(Initial) I choose to waive my TMWA Post Medical Plan benefit(s). I understand this waiver is permanent.

Employees are responsible for reviewing the calculations above for accuracy in accordance with the PRMT plan document. 
Minimum eligibility includes a date of hire on or before 12/13/18 and exiting TMWA with at least 10 years of service and after 
reaching age 55. This benefit is only considered approved once signed off on by the Post Retirement Medical Trust Board of 
Trustees below.

(Initial) I have reviewed the above calculation and accept the TMWA §501-c-9 Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
benefit(s). I understand I will have to request reimbursement credit or pay my portion of any outstanding premium in accordance 
with Trust polices and guidelines.

Applicable Plan 
Section:

Retiree Name:

Date of Birth:
Date of Hire:
Date of Retirement:
Date of Benefit Request:

Did the employee have any periods of less than 
full time work? No

Age at Benefit Request:
Years of Service:

Page 1 of 2

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 
05 Attachment 3



7/3/2024

Retiree Information:

Retiree Name:
Date of Retirement:
Enrollment on TMWA Medical Coverage:
Enrollment on TMWA Dental Coverage:
Enrollment on TMWA Vision Coverage:
Spouse Life Coverage:

TMWA Insurance Premium Costs:

Retiree Monthly
Coverage 2024 Medical Dental Vision Coverage

No coverage -$  -$  -$  
Retiree Only 747.54$  78.56$  5.46$  
Retiree & Spouse 1,307.62$            132.10$              8.74$  
Retiree & Child(ren) 1,240.54$            124.80$              8.94$  
Retiree & Family 1,630.28$            171.40$              14.42$  

Elected Medical Premium 1,307.62$            171.40$              $0.00

Retiree Premium Credit Amounts: 
Annual 

Amounts
Monthly 
Amounts

Spouse Life 
Premium: 0.48$             

Premium Amount: 17,748.24$          1,479.02$           

Retiree Credit Amounts: 
 Available at 
Retirement 

 Estimated 
Months Until 

Run Out 

 Trust Credit: 30,068.49$          20.32

Retiree Total Monthly Due:

Total monthly due will come from:

Retiree Acknowledgement:

Retiree Signature Date

Important Information:  Retirees who continue on TMWA coverage must provide proof of Medicare Enrollment at the time the 
retiree and or the retiree's spouse turn 65 and for each subsequent year they are covered. Benefit resolutions are subject to 
change as directed by the TMWA Board of Directors. All health and life premium calculations and Trust benefit awards are 
subject to change.

All premium costs and trust benefit credits shown above are subject to change. 

DRAFT The following premium calculation was prepared and reflects estimates as of:

Testing Retiree
06/14/24

Retiree & Spouse
Retiree & Family

No Coverage
Yes

Premiums paid by Trust until 
exhausted

1,479.50$  

Page 2 of 2

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 
05 Attachment 3



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 

Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Trustees of the Post Retirement Plan & Trust §501-c-9 
FROM: Jessica Atkinson, HR Director 
DATE: July 16, 2024 
SUBJECT: Calculation of applicability points for IBEW transfer employee hired by 

Sierra before January 1, 1998 

Summary 
An error was discovered on the Sierra Pacific Power Company Retiree Medical Premium % 
Calculation (“Calculation Form”) form provided to an International Brotherhood of Electrical 
Workers (IBEW) transfer employee hired by Sierra Pacific Power Company (Sierra) before 
January 1, 1998 (Attachment 1). The attachments to this Staff Report include the employee’s 
personnel records regarding dates of hire and the plan documents regarding dates and eligibility 
so that the Trustees can determine the employee’s correct and factual benefit calculation at the 
time of retirement. 
Background: 
At the time of the divesture from Sierra, TMWA and IBEW executed a Letter of Understanding 
(Attachment 2), which provided a voluntary retirement bridge for transfer employees. Employees 
were provided a Calculation Form from Sierra outlining how each of the bridge options would 
apply to each employee.  
Employee #50040 was provided a Calculation Form (Attachment 1), which was derived using a 
date of hire of December 20, 1990, resulting in a calculation of 3 available points. 
Review of this employee’s personnel records from Sierra indicate that the employee was: 

• Hired on December 24, 1990, as a Contract Laborer and terminated on June 24, 1991,
with the reason “END OF TEMP ASSIGNMENT.”

• Rehired on June 26, 1991, as a Contract Laborer with a subsequent term date of January
14, 1992, and reason “END OF TEMP ASSIGNMENT.”

• Rehired on January 20, 1992. Given Bid #6774 for an Operator, Utility III (9244)
position.

These dates and notes above are logged on a Sierra form titled, Pay Roll Record Change 
(Attachment 3).   
In addition to the Pay Roll Record Change log, there is an employment offer letter in the file 
dated January 28, 1992 (Attachment 4) and a Sierra Pacific Power Company 1997 BU employee 



07/16/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
 

  Page 2 of 3 

Benefits Statement (Attachment 5), which indicates the employee’s date of hire is January 20, 
1992, and provides a list of benefits offered to include Retirement Benefits. All the above 
records indicate that the employee’s hire date as a regular full-time, benefited employee was 
January 20,1992. 
Review of this employee’s personnel records from TMWA indicate that when the employee was 
initially entered into TMWA’s payroll system on June 11, 2001, he was mistakenly given a 
Seniority Date of December 24, 1990 (Attachment 6). Less than a month later, on July 6, 2001, 
the system was updated, and his seniority date was corrected to January 20, 1992 (Attachment 7). 
The §501-c-9 plan document (Attachment 8) Section 2.18 (Page 6), defines Service or Years of 
Service as,  

(a) “For IBEW Transfer Employees and MPAT transfer Employees.” “Service” or “Years 
of Service” include all years of service earned and accumulated by a Participant during 
the time he or she was an employee of TMWA and all years of service earned and 
accumulated by a Participant under the Sierra Plan in accordance with the Sierra Plan. 

The Sierra Pacific Resources Retirement Plan document (Attachment 9) Section 1.26 (Page 9) 
states,  

The following Employees shall not be Eligible Employees. . . (v) Employees who are 
classified as “Contingent Workers” as described in Appendix B or as a Temporary 
Employee as documented in an offer of employment or in Employer personnel or payroll 
records. Temporary Employee refers to a common-law Employee hired by the Employer 
to complete a short-term assignment or to fill a position or perform a function that is not 
part of the Employer’s regular operations or that is likely to be eliminated in the 
foreseeable future because of a change in technology, outsourcing, subcontracting or 
other reason. 

Sierra personnel and payroll records has this employee’s date of hire as a regular, benefitted 
employee as January 20, 1992. Therefore, January 20, 1992 is the date of hire that is used for 
determining §501-c-9 trust benefits.   
The December 20, 1990, date shown on the employee’s Calculation Form is erroneous. All 
available documentation indicates that the employee was hired as a temporary employee on 
December 24, 1990, and did not become a regular, benefited employee until January 20, 1992. In 
accordance with the trust document and the original Sierra Retirement Plan, temporary 
employees are not considered eligible for post-retirement benefits. 
The employee asserts that because December 20, 1990, was used as his hire date in the 
Calculation Form and because the Calculation Form indicated he was eligible for 3 points using 
the December 20, 1990, date of hire, three points should be credited to him at the time of his 
retirement from TMWA. The addition of three points added to the employee’s age would 
increase the amount of the premiums covered by the Trust from 80% to 85%. 
The available documentation indicates that the employee’s actual date of hire for benefit 
purposes is January 20, 1992, and not December 20, 1990, as presented on the Calculation Form. 
Accordingly, TMWA’s benefit calculation does not include the 3 points to be added to the 
employee’s age resulting in the Trust paying 80% of the employees eligible premiums.  



07/16/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
 

  Page 3 of 3 

Ultimately, Trustees should consider the information included within this Staff Report and 
applicable attachments to determine the correct and factual date of hire to be used when 
calculating post-retirement medical benefits under the Trust.  
Attachments: 
Attachment 1  Sierra Pacific Power Company Retiree Medical Premium % Calculation 
Attachment 2  Letter of Understanding between TMWA and Local Union 1245 of the 

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, together with the attachments 
(Agreement Concerning Compliance with Letter of Understanding and 
Agreement Amending Letter of Understanding.     

Attachment 3  Pay Roll Record Change Log 
Attachment 4 Employment Offer Letter 
Attachment 5  SPPC 1997 BU Employee Benefits Statement 
Attachment 6  Personnel and Payroll Action Form 6/11/01 
Attachment 7  Personnel and Payroll Action Form 7/6/01 
Attachment 8 §501-c-9 Plan Document As Restated on September 20, 2017 
Attachment 9 Sierra Pacific Resources Retirement Plan As Amended and Restated Effective 

January 1, 2000 
 
 



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 1



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 2



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 3



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 4



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 4



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 5



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 5



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 6



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 7



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 8



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08 
Attachment 9



Page 1 of 3 
521     Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Reimbursement Request Policy 

§501-c-9 Trust Policy

Title:  Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Reimbursement 
Request Policy 

Procedure #: 
521 

Department(s): §501-c-9 Trust 
Subject: 

Post Retirement 
Benefits 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

1. Purpose

The Board of Trustees of The Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
(the “Trust”) §501-c-9, sets forth the guidelines for the administration of the Retiree Medical Benefit. 
Eligible retirees can request reimbursement from the Trust, not to exceed approved annual or lifetime 
credits for a portionup to 100% of expenses incurred to pay the cost of participation in qualified private 
health insurance coverage options. 

Reimbursement will be in accordance with approved annual or lifetime credits in accordance with the 
terms of the Trust pPlan dDocument as approved by the Trustees.  

2. Procedure

Reimbursement Request Process: 

1. An Eeligible retiree completes the “Medical Premium Expense Reimbursement Request Form” in
order forfor reimbursement of annual or lifetime credits to be considered.

2. The form must be completed in its entirety with proof of payment and coverage attachedincluded.

3. Reimbursement can be requested for the eligible retiree and their eligible dependents per Trust
and group health plan guidelines. 

4. Reimbursement can be requested:

a. Not more than fifteen months after an expense is incurred, or

3.b. Not more than twelve months prior to an expense being incurred.

How to File a Reimbursement Request: 

An Eeligible retiree’s should use the “Medical Premium Expense Reimbursement Request Form” to 
request reimbursement from the PRMPT. 

1. Complete the Medical Premium Expense Reimbursement Request Form

2. Attach Include proof of payment and coverage

3. Be sure to sSign and date the form

4. Forms can be submitted via mail, faxfax, or email:

Post Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
c/o TMWA Human Resources 
PO Box 30013 
Reno, NV 89520 
Fax: (775) 834-8030;  Fax - Email: hr@tmwa.com 

Credits will not be prepaid to retirees. Reimbursement is provided after proof of payment and coverage 
is submitted following the process outlined above. Reimbursements will only be approved for coverage 
incurred meaning that reimbursement for future coverage will not be reimbursed until after the coverage 
period (i.e. prepaying for an entire year will only be reimbursed from the Trust after the end of the year).  

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
521     Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Reimbursement Request Policy 

 

Frequency of Reimbursement: 

The Trust will issue reimbursement checks to eligible retirees quarterly persee the schedule of payments 
below: 

Claims Period    Paid on or Before* 
January through March  Claims  Paid on or before April 30March 31 
April through June Claims   Paid on or before July 31June 30 
July through September Claims  Paid on or before October 31September 30 
October through December Claims  Paid on or before January December 31 

*To receive a reimbursement on or before the dates indicated, a retiree must complete and submit a 
request form with appropriate documentation by the 5th business day of the last month of the claims 
period. If received later, reimbursement will be made with the subsequent quarter’s’ reimbursements. 

Eligible retirees may lump reimbursement requests for up to one yearfifteen months maximum. 
Expenses reported more than one yearfifteen months after the expense incurred date will not be eligible 
for reimbursement. 

Eligible retirees may submit reimbursement requests up to twelve months in advance. When doing so, 
reimbursements will be processed on a quarterly basis following the dates the expenses are incurred 
(example: Retiree submits reimbursement requests in January of 2011 for credit reimbursement for 
expenses incurred from January 2011 through December of 2011. The retiree would receive their first 
reimbursement on or before March 31st for expenses incurred between January 2011 through March 
2011 and would receive their next reimbursement on or before June 30th for expenses incurred April 
2011 through June 2011 and so forth.) 

Reimbursements will only be made for expenses incurred for qualified health, dental and or vision 
coverage.  Should an MPAT retiree’s annual expenses be less than the approved annual credit, the 
retiree is not eligible for the difference.  The remaining difference will be retained by the Trust and is 
not eligible to be used in future calendar year requests. 

Processing & Approval of Reimbursement: 

 Once received, HR will ensure the reimbursement request form is complete, signed by the retiree, 
includes all necessary supporting documentation and that the expenses are qualified expenses as 
described in the Trust Plan Document. 

 HR will submit the completed form and supporting documentation to TMWA’s Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO). 
o The CFO approves thatensureswill ensure the request form is completed and signed and, that 

sufficient supporting documentation has been provided. 
 Once approved by the CFO, the Request Form will be routed to TMWA Accounting for review and 

preparation of payment. 
o TMWA’s Accounting will prepare the payment in an amount not to exceed the total available 

credit in consideration of maximum annual or lifetime credits. 
o TMWA’s Accounting will prepare the payment in TMWA’s accounting system and route to the 

Trustees designated as Trust account signers for approval.  
 Once approval is complete, the reimbursement payment will be processed and sent to the 

retiree. 

3. References 

 Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical and Life Insurance Plan & Trust (As 
Restated) pPlan dDocument. 

 PRMPT Medical Premium Expense Reimbursement Request Form. 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
521     Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust Reimbursement Request Policy 

4. Modifications and Maintenance 

This Policy may be amended at the direction of the §501-c-9 Trustees or their designee. Amendments 
shall become effective immediately unless otherwise noted. 

Situations may occur in which strict application of this Policy may be either operationally or economically 
inefficient or inappropriate. The Trustees shall exercise discretion in taking exception to this procedure 
but shall have the ability to do so as they deem appropriate. 

5. Attachments & Appendices 

Medical Premium Expense Reimbursement Form 

 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_A



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_A



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_A



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_B



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_B



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_B



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_C



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_C



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_C



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_D



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_E



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_E



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_E



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_E



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_F



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_F



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_F



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_F



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_F



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10_F



07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 12 

Page 1 of 1 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
a single employer plan sponsored by 

  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

TO: Board of Trustees of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust 
FROM: Veronica Galindo, Senior Accountant 
DATE: July 9, 2024 
SUBJECT:     Present and accept the December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation 

Recommendation 
TMWA staff recommends the Trustees accept the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-
Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (the Plan) Actuarial Valuation of Other Post-Employment 
Benefit Programs as of December 31, 2023. 

Discussion 
The following report is attached: 

• Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust Actuarial
Valuation of Other Post-Employment Benefit Programs as of December 31, 2023

The primary purposes of this report are to: 

• Remeasure the Plan’s liabilities as of December 31, 2023,
• Develop actuarially determined contribution levels for prefunding plan benefits, and
• Provide information required by governmental accounting standards for this plan to be

reported in TMWA’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

Some highlights of the Plan’s report as of December 31, 2023 include: 

• The Plan covers 148 active employees and 69 retirees.
• The Plan’s total OPEB liability is $10.8 million.
• The Plan’s fiduciary net position is $15.5 million.
• The Plan has a net OPEB asset of $4.7 million.
• Given the substantial surplus position of the Plan, the actuarial determined contributions

are $0 through June 30, 2026.



eidebailly.com

Financial Statements 
December 31, 2023 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
A Fiduciary Component Unit of Truckee Meadows Water 
Authority 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Table of Contents 

December 31, 2023 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Management’s Discussion & Analysis .................................................................................................................. 4 

Basic Financial Statements 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ................................................................................................................. 8 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position ............................................................................................... 9 
Notes to Financial Statements ........................................................................................................................10 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ..................................................................17 
Schedule of Contributions...............................................................................................................................18 
Schedule of Investment Returns .....................................................................................................................19 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on  Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards .........................................................................................................................20 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 |  Reno, NV 89511-2094  |  T 775.689.9100  |  F 775.689.9299  |  EOE

1 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Reno, Nevada 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement 
Medical Plan & Trust (the “Plan”), a fiduciary component unit of Truckee Meadows Water Authority, as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Plan’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the Plan, as of December 31, 2023, and the respective 
changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Plan 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

2 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Plan’s ability to continue 
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Plan’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 4-7, schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios on 
page 17, schedule of contributions on page 18, and schedule of investment returns on page 19, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

3 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 13, 2024 
on our consideration of the Plan’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Plan’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Plan’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 

 
 
Reno, Nevada 
June 13, 2024

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

4 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust (the Plan) financial management 
provides the following discussion and analysis as an introduction to the basic financial statements and an 
analytical overview of the Plan’s financial activities for the reporting periods ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022. This narrative is intended as a supplement and should be read in conjunction with the financial 
statements. 
 
Effective December 13, 2018, TMWA’s Board of Directors adopted a resolution to close the Plan to any 
employees hired after December 13, 2018. Existing employees and plan participants currently receiving benefits 
were not impacted by this resolution. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The Plan’s financial statements include the following components: 
 

• Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
• Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
• Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
In addition to the financial statements, required supplementary information is provided in the following 
schedules: 
 

• Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
• Schedule of Contributions 
• Schedule of Investment Returns  

 
The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position presents the Plan’s assets and liabilities and the net position, with the 
assets being held in trust for beneficiary post-employment benefits. This statement measures the Plan’s 
investments at fair value, cash and other short-term assets and liabilities as of the year ended December 31, 
2023.  
 
The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position presents information showing how the Plan’s net position 
changed during the reporting year. This statement includes additions for employer contributions, investment 
income (loss), and deductions for payments for the benefit of retirees and administrative expenses for the year 
ended December 31, 2023. 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of the financial statements and provide additional 
information that is necessary to gain a comprehensive understanding of the data in the financial statements. 
 
The Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios is required supplementary information 
which provides multi-year information about the OPEB liabilities for which the Plan’s assets are held and 
managed. 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

5 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
 
The Schedule of Contributions is required supplementary information which provides multi-year information. It 
contains the actuarial determined contribution as well as the methods and assumptions used to determine 
contribution rates. 
 
The Schedule of Investment Returns is required supplementary information which provides multi-year 
information regarding the rate of return calculated as the internal rate of return on the Plan’s investments, net 
of investment expense. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
Financial highlights of the Plan as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 are as follows: 
 

• Operating cash balances at year end were $0.2 million  
• Plan investments at fair value at year end were $15.4 million 
• Net investment income was $2.4 million 
• Employer contributions to the Plan were $0 

 
Financial highlights of the Plan as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 are as follows: 
 

• Operating cash balances at year end were $74,782 
• Plan investments at fair value at year end were $13.5 million 
• Net investment loss was $2.2 million 
• Employer contributions to the Plan were $0 

 
Plan Analysis 
 
The following table provides a summary of two years of Net Position of the Plan:  
 

Change
2023 2022 2023 v 2022

Assets
Cash 170,310$           74,782$             95,528$             
Receivables from plan members 10,740               12,452               (1,712)                
Investments, at fair value 15,390,220       13,457,829       1,932,391         

Total assets 15,571,270       13,545,063       2,026,207         

Liabilities
Accounts payable 106,028             119,292             (13,264)              

Net position restricted for postemployment
benefits other than pensions 15,465,242$     13,425,771$     2,039,471$       

 
 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

6 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
 
At December 31, 2023, Plan assets of $15.6 million were comprised primarily of investments at fair value. Also 
included in Plan assets were $0.2 million in operating cash and $10,740 in Plan member receivables. Plan assets 
increased by $2 million as compared to December 31, 2022 due mostly to an increase in fair value of Plan 
investments. 
 
The following table provides a summary of two years of Changes in Net Position of the Plan:  
 

Change
2023 2022 2023 v 2022

Additions
Net investment income (loss) 2,412,391$       (2,194,687)$      4,607,078$       

Deductions
Benefit payments 348,885             366,492             (17,607)              
Administrative expenses 24,035               20,532               3,503                 

Total deductions 372,920             387,024             (14,104)              

Change in net position 2,039,471         (2,581,711)        4,621,182         

Net position restricted for postemployment
benefits other than pensions

Beginning of year 13,425,771       16,007,482       (2,581,711)        

End of year 15,465,242$     13,425,771$     2,039,471$       
 

Net position is restricted for future benefit payments to retirees.  
 
As of December 31, 2023, the Net Position of the Plan was $15.5 million. The Plan Net Position is essentially 
comprised of assets of the Plan offset by a minor balance of accounts payable. The Net Position of the Plan 
increased $2.0 million in 2023. This was primarily due to an increase in fair value of investments of $1.9 million 
from 2022 to 2023, related to higher returns from the investment portfolio.  There were no employer 
contributions made in 2023 and 2022 as a result of the actuarial valuations dated December 31, 2023 and 2021. 
Benefits paid, net of plan member contributions, of $348,885 in 2023 decreased from the previous year due 
primarily to a decrease in retirees. Additionally, greater contributions from retirees and decreases in premium 
expense decreased net benefits paid. Administrative expenses totaling $24,035 in 2023 were slightly higher than 
in 2022 due to increased accounting fees. 
 
To ensure that funds are accumulated on a regular and systematic basis, it is the practice of TMWA to contribute 
sufficient amounts to the plan to ensure that the Plan’s assets are sufficient to cover the Total OPEB Liability 
which is disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements. 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

7 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
 
Economic Outlook 
 
The Federal Reserve continues to monitor economic indicators including inflation and unemployment with the 
goal of lowering inflation to 2%. The Federal Reserve is expected to lower the Federal Funds target rate during 
2024. Market reaction to Federal Reserve decisions and/or other external factors could impact investment 
performance of the Plan.  
 
Requests for Information 
 
Questions concerning the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information 
should be addressed to Matt Bowman, TMWA Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer at P.O. Box 30013, Reno, NV 
89509-3013. 
 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

See Notes to Financial Statements 8 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

December 31, 2023 
 
 
Assets

Cash 170,310$           
Receivables from plan members 10,740               
Investments, at fair value 15,390,220

Total assets 15,571,270

Liabilities
Accounts payable 106,028

Net position restricted for postemployment benefits other than pensions 15,465,242$     
 

 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

See Notes to Financial Statements 9 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
 
Additions

Net investment income 2,412,391$       

Deductions
Benefit payments 348,885             
Administrative expenses 24,035               

Total deductions 372,920             

Net increase in net position 2,039,471         

Net position restricted for postemployment benefits other than pensions
Beginning of year 13,425,771       

End of year 15,465,242$     
 

 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

10 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 
 
Note 1 -  Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) established a Voluntary Employee Benefit Association pursuant to 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code 501(c)(9) which is referred to as the Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust (the Plan), a fiduciary component unit of TMWA and a single-employer 
defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan. Tax exempt status was granted by the IRS on 
May 25, 2007. The Plan provides TMWA retirees with postemployment group health, including medical, dental, 
vision, and life insurance coverage. The Plan’s financial reporting period ends December 31, while TMWA’s 
financial reporting period ends June 30. 
 
These statements have also been prepared in accordance with the reporting standards as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in GASB 
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities and in GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. These 
standards require the inclusion in TMWA’s financial statements of fiduciary components if TMWA has control of 
the assets and if the following criteria are met: 
 

1. If TMWA appoints a voting majority and either has financial burden (legally or assumed) to make 
contributions or has imposition of will. 

2. If TMWA does not appoint a voting majority and has both a financial burden (legally or assumed) to 
make contributions and there is fiscal dependency on TMWA. 

 
Therefore, due to the above criteria, the Plan is considered to be a fiduciary component unit of TMWA. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America may require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
Investments and Investment Income 
 
Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Investment 
income includes the Plan’s net earnings from its participation in the State of Nevada's Retirement Benefits 
Investment Fund (RBIF), an external investment pool. The Plan’s net earnings from the external investment pool 
is based on the Plan’s original investment plus a monthly allocation of investment income, including realized and 
unrealized gains and losses, which is the same as the value of the pool shares.  
 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

11 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 
 
Contributions 
 
Contributions, if any, are recognized in the period in which such amounts are owed by TMWA for the OPEB 
benefits as they become due and payable.  
 
Payment of Benefits 
 
Benefits, net of plan member contributions, are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms 
of the Plan.  
 
Administrative Expenses 
 
Administrative expenses are recorded when incurred and payable by the Plan. 
 
Net Position Classification 
 
Restricted Net Position – Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by (1) external 
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Net position is restricted for postemployment benefits 
other than pension by the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust and Trust Agreement.  
 
 
Note 2 -  Plan Description and Contribution Information 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Plan, a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan, was established to provide eligible TMWA retirees with 
post-employment group health, including medical, dental, vision, and life insurance coverage. Pursuant to 
Nevada State Administrative Regulations, adopted in September 2008, the Plan will be governed by not less than 
three but not more than five trustees. Four trustees were appointed by the TMWA Board of Directors, two 
members from non-represented positions and two members from represented employees. The TMWA General 
Manager has been given authority to appoint the two non-represented employee trustees and accept the 
nomination of represented employee trustees by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) 
Local 1245. 
 
Eligibility requirements, benefit levels, and TMWA contributions are established and amended through TMWA’s 
collective bargaining agreement for its represented employees (IBEW) and by the TMWA Board of Directors with 
respect to non-represented Management, Professional, Administrative, and Technical employees (MPAT). 
 
Retiree Healthcare Coverage Plan Options 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2023, TMWA retirees could chose between a Preferred Provider 
Organization or an Employer Health Maintenance Organization health plan coverage option administered by the 
City of Reno. These health plan coverage options are the same health plan coverage options offered to active 
employees of TMWA. Effective January 1, 2024, the City of Reno offers only a Preferred Provider Organization 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



12 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

health plan coverage option. TMWA retirees may choose to participate in a health plan coverage option not 
provided by the City of Reno. The amount paid by the Plan for participation in health plan coverage options 
other than those offered by the City of Reno are limited to the amount otherwise payable had the participant 
selected one of the City of Reno plans.  

In order to be eligible for benefits, retirees must have at least ten years of credited service with TMWA and must 
be at least 55 years of age. When eligible, retirees must enroll in and pay the cost of Medicare Part B or 
Medicare Part C. Once participants exhaust their medical benefits, they will continue to be eligible for life 
benefits under the Plan. 

Life Benefits 

TMWA retiree coverage continues at the same coverage amount in force at the time of retirement (one times 
basic annual earnings) until age 70, at which time coverage reduces to one-half of that amount. At age 75, 
coverage is reduced to $2,000. The retiree bears no cost of the premiums for this coverage amount. However, 
retirees do have the opportunity to purchase optional life insurance, the cost of which is paid by the retiree. A 
retiree may also elect $1,500 of life insurance coverage for his or her spouse by paying 100% of the applicable 
premium. 

Membership of the Plan 

As of the actuarial valuation date of December 31, 2023, membership of the Plan consisted of the following: 

Retirees currently receiving medical benefits  43
Retirees currently receiving life benefits 67 
Retirees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 1 

Active Plan Members
IBEW members 79 
MPAT members 69 

The Plan is a closed plan that will provide future benefits to eligible TMWA employees. 

Contributions and Benefits Provided 

TMWA is responsible for a subsidy towards the costs of retiree coverage; the amount of which is dependent on 
the classification of the employee at the time of retirement from TMWA. There are three classifications of 
TMWA employees eligible for postemployment benefits upon retirement from TMWA. The classes of employees 
and related TMWA subsidies are as follows: 

1. IBEW group hired on or before January 1, 1998: Retirees in this classification receive a benefit as a
percentage of the total group health premiums, dependent upon credited years of service and their age
at retirement. The maximum subsidy is 85% of the health care premium with a minimum of 20 years of
credited service. Retirees with 20 or more years of credited service electing the Medicare Risk Contract
can receive a subsidy of 100%. Retirees may elect the employer-offered medical plan of their choice for
themselves and qualified dependents.

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

13 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 
 

2. IBEW group hired on or after January 1, 1998 and on or before December 13, 2018: Retirees in this 
classification will receive a lifetime lump-sum subsidy toward their chosen health coverage and the 
coverage of qualified dependents. The subsidy is a total of $1,250 multiplied for each adjusted Post-
Retirement Medical Plan & Trust year of service. This amount does not grow with interest and once 
exhausted a retiree is responsible for paying the full cost of health premiums. 

 
3. MPAT personnel hired on or before December 13, 2018: Retirees in this classification are eligible to 

receive an annual subsidy towards the cost of health premiums calculated at $235 multiplied by credited 
years of service, up to 30 years for retirees aged 55 through 64; and $105 multiplied by credited years of 
service up to 35 years, for retirees aged 65 and above. The subsidy is reduced by 5% for each year or 
partial year that the individual is under age 62 as of his or her retirement date. There is no extra subsidy 
for spousal or dependent coverage. 

 
TMWA shall annually contribute to the Plan an amount which TMWA determines is necessary to fund the 
benefits due pursuant to a qualified actuarial analysis. During the year ended December 31, 2023, TMWA 
contributed $-0- to the Plan. Retiree contributions were $139,380 which were net against benefit payments in 
the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. 
 
Retiree contributions are required for the portion of the premiums and costs in excess of the subsidies provided 
by TMWA as discussed above. During the year ended December 31, 2023, retirees’ share of health premiums 
and costs ranged from $2 to $1,337 a month per retiree. 
 
The Plan offers participants Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA) continuation of 
coverage, subject to all conditions and limitations of COBRA. One participant utilized COBRA continuation of 
coverage during the year ended December 31, 2023. 
 
 
Note 3 -  Cash and Investments 
 
Deposits 
 
As of December 31, 2023, the Plan’s bank balance was $207,291 and carrying amount was $170,310. Accounts 
are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per depositor, per insured 
bank, for each account ownership category. All of the bank balance was covered by the FDIC. 
 
Investments  
 
The Board of Trustees has established an investment policy for the Plan. Under the policy, the Plan’s assets are 
limited to investments in the State of Nevada’s RBIF; and any investment authorized pursuant to Nevada 
Revised Statute (NRS) 355.170. Such investments under NRS 355.170 include certain “A” rated notes and bonds, 
guaranteed investment contracts, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, obligations of other U.S. Government 
agencies, negotiable and non-negotiable certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks or insured savings 
and loan associations, bankers acceptances, repurchase agreements, "AAA" rated mutual funds that invest in 
securities of the Federal Government or agencies of the Federal Government, and the State of Nevada Local 
Government Investment Pool. 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

14 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 
 
RBIF 
 
The Plan invests its assets in the RBIF as allowed by the NRS 287.017 and the Nevada Administrative Code 287. 
 
The RBIF was established pursuant to NRS 355.220 and is administered by the Retirement Benefits Investment 
Board as an unrated external investment pool. The RBIF is not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission as an investment company. Each participant acts as fiduciary for its particular share of the RBIF and 
is allocated earnings (losses) and expenses according to their proportional share in RBIF. Bank of New York, 
Mellon determines the fair value of the RBIF monthly. Complete financial information on RBIF as of June 30, 
2023 can be obtained by contacting Public Employees Retirement System at 693 W. Nye Lane, Carson City, NV, 
89703. 
 
Investments at fair value as of December 31, 2023: 
 

RBIF 15,390,220$       

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments net expenses 
was 18.21%. The money-weighted rated of return expresses investment performance, net of investment 
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
 
 
Note 4 -  Net OPEB Asset of TMWA 
 
The components of the net OPEB asset of TMWA as of December 31, 2023 were as follows: 
 
Total OPEB liability 10,805,583$       
Plan fiduciary net position 15,465,242         

Net OPEB liability (asset) (4,659,659)$        

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability 143.12%

Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2023, using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.00%
Investment rate of return 6.00%
Healthcare cost trend rates* 6.50% in 2025; 3.90% ultimated for 2075 and later years

* Healthcare cost trend rate fluctuates each year until ultimate trend rate is reached.

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

15 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 
 
Mortality rates were based on the MacLeod Watts Scale 2022, which was developed by the actuary from a 
blending of data and methodologies found in two published sources: (1) the Society of Actuaries Mortality 
Improvement Scale MP‐2021 Report, published in October 2021 and (2) the demographic assumptions used in 
the 2021 Annual Report of the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old‐Age and Survivors Insurance and Federal 
Disability Insurance Trust Funds, published August 2021. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2023 were based on actual census 
data. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was derived from RBIF's rates of return and 
investment policy: 
 

Target Allocation Asset Allocation

S&P 500 Index 49.50% 49.90%
MSCI World x US Index 19.50% 19.20%
U.S. Bond Index 28.00% 27.40%
Cash & Cash Equivalents 3.00% 3.50%

100.00% 100.00%

Asset Class

 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.00%. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that Plan contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially 
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total OPEB liability. 
 
Changes in Assumptions 
 
The healthcare cost trend rate was updated for the year ended December 31, 2023 for projecting medical 
premiums and expected claims from Getzen Model 2022_b to Getzen Model 2023, as published by the Society 
of Actuaries. Dental premium rate increases were lowered from 4.0% per year to 3.5% per year and vision 
premium rate increases were lowered from 4.0% per year to 2.5% per year, following a review of rate changes 
over the past 6 years. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net OPEB asset of TMWA, as well as what TMWA’s net OPEB asset would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(7.00 percent) than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.00%) (6.00%) (7.00%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (3,526,105)$        (4,659,659)$        (5,642,935)$        

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

16 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB asset of TMWA, as well as what TMWA’s net OPEB asset would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (5.50 percent decreasing to 2.90 
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.50 percent decreasing to 4.90 percent) than the current healthcare 
cost trend rates: 
 

Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

(5.5% decreasing (6.5% decreasing (7.5% decreasing
to 2.90%) to 3.90%) to 4.90%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (5,457,578)$        (4,659,659)$        (3,720,622)$        

 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



eidebailly.com

Required Supplementary Information 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
A Fiduciary Component Unit of Truckee Meadows Water 
Authority 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

17 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Last Ten Years* 
 
 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Total OPEB liability

Service cost 186,748$          181,309$          229,280$          222,602$          307,252$          295,437$          284,073$          
Interest cost 614,891            596,546            636,038            609,728            682,186            648,751            612,850            
Differences between expected 

and actual experience 58,687              -                          (760,853)           -                          (2,013,876)       -                          -                          
Changes of assumptions 139,717            -                          (271,660)           -                          301,774            -                          -                          
Benefit payments (511,806)           (443,277)           (442,780)           (358,251)           (442,363)           (355,168)           (264,699)           

Net change in total OPEB liability 488,237            334,578            (609,975)           474,079            (1,165,027)       589,020            632,224            

Total OPEB liability - beginning 10,317,346      9,982,768        10,592,743      10,118,664      11,283,691      10,694,671      10,062,447      

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 10,805,583$    10,317,346$    9,982,768$      10,592,743$    10,118,664$    11,283,691$    10,694,671$    

Plan fiduciary net position
Employer contributions -$                        -$                        -$                        69,289$            138,578$          222,531$          445,063$          
Employer contributions - implicit subsidy 162,921            76,785              63,156              61,978              119,852            101,996            -                          
Net investment income (loss) 2,412,391        (2,194,687)       2,364,272        1,843,000        2,298,001        (526,210)           1,510,048        
Benefit payments (348,885)           (366,492)           (379,624)           (296,273)           (322,511)           (253,172)           (264,699)           
Benefit payments - implicit subsidy (162,921)           (76,785)             (63,156)             (61,978)             (119,852)           (101,996)           -                          
Auditing fees (21,735)             (18,200)             (18,775)             (18,490)             (12,600)             (18,545)             (15,500)             
Administrative fees -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          (382)                   (517)                   
Legal fees (2,300)               (2,332)               -                          -                          (1,750)               (5,250)               (19,268)             
Retiree contributions in 139,380            128,878            110,022            111,103            93,673              117,015            93,172              
Retiree contributions out (139,380)           (128,878)           (110,022)           (111,103)           (93,673)             (117,015)           (93,172)             

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,039,471        (2,581,711)       1,965,873        1,597,526        2,099,718        (581,028)           1,655,127        

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 13,425,771      16,007,482      14,041,609      12,444,083      10,344,365      10,925,393      9,270,266        

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 15,465,242$    13,425,771$    16,007,482$    14,041,609$    12,444,083$    10,344,365$    10,925,393$    

TMWA's net OPEB liability / (asset) - 
ending (a) - (b) (4,659,659)$     (3,108,425)$     (6,024,714)$     (3,448,866)$     (2,325,419)$     939,326$          (230,722)$        

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total OPEB liability 143.12% 130.13% 160.35% 132.56% 122.98% 91.68% 102.16%

Covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

TMWA's net OPEB (asset)/liability as a 
percentage of covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A - OPEB plan is not based on a measure of pay and there are no active employees covered under the Plan.

*GASB Statement No. 74 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data is available, the Plan will present
information only for those years for which information is available. 

Notes to Schedule: 
 
Changes in benefits: Effective December 13, 2018, TMWA’s Board of Directors adopted a resolution to close the 
Plan to any employees hired after December 13, 2018. 
 
Changes of assumptions: In the 2019 actuarial valuation, mortality tables were updated from MacLeod Watts 
Scale 2017 to MacLeod Watts Scale 2018; and the medical trend model was updated from combined sources, 
Nevada Public Employee Benefit Plan along with other healthcare trends, to the Getzen healthcare trend model. 
In the 2021 actuarial valuation, mortality tables were updated from MacLeod Watts Scale 2018 to MacLeod 
Watts Scale 2022. In the 2023 actuarial valuation, the healthcare cost trend rate was updated for projecting 
medical premiums and expected claims from Getzen Model 2022_b to Getzen Model 2023, as published by the 
Society of Actuaries.  Dental premium rate increases were lowered from 4.0% per year to 3.5% per year and 
vision premium rate increases were lowered from 4.0% per year to 2.5% per year, following a review of rate 
changes over the past 6 years.

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

18 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Schedule of Contributions 

Last Ten Years* 
 
 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Actuarially determined contribution -$                    31,839$        60,100$        53,218$        174,095$     291,480$     364,973$     
Contributions in relation to the

actuarially determined contribution -                      -                      -                      69,289          138,578        222,531        445,063        

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                    31,839$        60,100$        (16,071)$      35,517$        68,949$        (80,090)$      

Covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A - OPEB plan is not based on a measure of pay and there are no active employees covered under the Plan.

*GASB Statement No. 74 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data is available, the Plan will present
information only for those years for which information is available. 

Notes to Schedule: 
 
Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, 2023. 
 
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates are as follows: 
 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal cost
Amortization method Level percent of pay
Amortization period 22 years, closed
Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.00%
Healthcare cost trend rates* 6.50% in 2025

    3.90% ultimated for 2075 and later years
Investment rate of return/

discount rate 6.00%
Retirement age 45-75
Mortality Mortality rates were based on the MacLeod Watts Scale 

     2022, a custom table developed by the Plan's actuary

* Healthcare cost trend rate fluctuates each year until ultimate trend rate is reached.

Other information: In the 2019 actuarial valuation, mortality tables were updated from MacLeod Watts Scale 
2017 to MacLeod Watts Scale 2018; and the medical trend model was updated from combined sources, Nevada 
Public Employee Benefit Plan along with other healthcare trends, to the Getzen healthcare trend model. In the 
2021 actuarial valuation, mortality tables were updated from MacLeod Watts Scale 2018 to MacLeod Watts 
Scale 2022. In the 2023 actuarial valuation, the healthcare cost trend rate was updated for projecting medical 
premiums and expected claims from Getzen Model 2022_b to Getzen Model 2023, as published by the Society 
of Actuaries.  Dental premium rate increases were lowered from 4.0% per year to 3.5% per year and vision 
premium rate increases were lowered from 4.0% per year to 2.5% per year, following a review of rate changes 
over the past 6 years. 
 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



 

19 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Schedule of Investment Returns 

Last Ten Years* 
 
 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Annual money-weighted rate of return,

net of investment expense 18.21% -13.80% 17.02% 1.29% 1.72% -0.38% 15.53%

*GASB Statement No. 74 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data is available, the Plan will present
information only for those years for which information is available. 

 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 |  Reno, NV 89511-2094  |  T 775.689.9100  |  F 775.689.9299  |  EOE

20 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  

To the Board of Trustees 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
Reno, Nevada 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial 
statements of the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust (the 
“Plan”), a fiduciary component unit of Truckee Meadows Water Authority, as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Plan’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 13, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Plan’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Plan’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the Plan’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



21 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Plan’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Plan’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Plan’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Reno, Nevada 
June 13, 2024 

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 13 
Attachment 1



Asset Class Market Value Target 
Allocation

Actual 
Allocation

FYTD 
Return One Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years

Since 
Inception 

(2008)

U.S. Stocks- S&P 500 Index 377,161,491$     42.5% 42.5% 19.4% 29.8% 11.5% 15.0% 12.9% 10.8%
Market Return 19.4% 29.9% 11.5% 15.1% 13.0% 10.8%
Int'l Stocks- MSCI World x US Index 156,270,929$     17.5% 17.6% 11.8% 15.4% 5.1% 7.7% 5.1% 4.0%
Market Return 11.9% 15.3% 4.9% 7.5% 4.9% 3.8%
U.S. Bonds- U.S. Bond Index 248,684,102$     28.0% 28.0% 1.5% 0.1% -1.2% 1.9% 2.1% 2.8%
Market Return 1.5% 0.1% -1.4% 1.7% 1.9% 2.6%
Cash 106,108,259$     12.0% 12.0% 3.5%
Market Return 3.6%

Market Return 12.4% 17.7% 6.5% 9.9% 8.2% 7.4%

10.2% 7.5%

Retirement Benefits Investment Fund
March 31, 2024

Performance Gross of Fees

Total RBIF Fund 888,224,781$     100.0% 100.0% 12.5% 17.9% 6.8% 8.5%

07/23/2024 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 14


	2024.07.23. PRMT 04 April 2024 Minutes Draft.pdf
	Draft April 16, 2024 MINUTES

	2024.07.23. PRMT 05 Attachement 1_Benefit Calculation _MPAT TEMPLATE FINAL DRAFT___.pdf
	MPATTrust
	PRMPT 05 Attachement 1_Benefit Calculation _MPAT TEMPLATE FINAL DRAFTretiree premium.pdf
	RetireePremium


	2024.07.23. PRMT 05 Attachment 2_Benefit Calculation _PRE98 TEMPLATE FINAL DRAFT__.pdf
	SPPC Point Calc
	PRMPT 05 Attachment 2_Benefit Calculation _PRE98 TEMPLATE FINAL DRAFT bc.pdf
	PRE98Trust

	PRMPT 05 Attachment 2_Benefit Calculation _PRE98 TEMPLATE FINAL DRAFTretiree prem.pdf
	RetireePremium


	2024.07.23. PRMT 05 Attachment 3_Benefit Calculation _POST98 TEMPLATE FINAL DRAFT__.pdf
	RETIREEPremium
	PRMPT 05 Attachment 3_Benefit Calculation _POST98 TEMPLATE FINAL DRAFT bc.pdf
	POST98Trust


	2024.07.23. PRMT 14  RBIF-Investments-Mar2024.pdf
	RBIF




